
 

The Corporation of the 
Town of Milton 

 

Report To: Council 

From: Jill Hogan, Commissioner, Development Services 

Date: June 23, 2025 

Report No: DS-034-25 

Subject: Recommendation Report - Notice of Intention to Designate_ 11275 

First Line_ Peter Little House 

Recommendation: THAT Staff Report DS-034-25 entitled: “Recommendation Report - 

Notice of Intention to Designate_ 11275 First Line_ Peter Little 

House” be received; 

THAT Council recognizes the historic house at 11275 First line in the 

Town of Milton as being of heritage significance; 

THAT Council designate the property under Part IV of the Ontario 

Heritage Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. O.18 for the reasons outlined in the 

Reasons for Designation attached as Appendix 1 to this Report; 

AND THAT the Town Clerk provides the Notice of Intention to 

Designate as outlined in Section 29 (4) of the Ontario Heritage Act; 

AND FURTHER THAT once the thirty-day objection period has 

expired and if there are no objections, a designation by-law is brought 

forward for Council adoption. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

• This one-and-a-half-storey board and batten, Regency Style house was built in 

1870 for Peter Little and family. Peter was the first merchant to open a store in 

Moffat on the west side of Lot 15 Concession II in 1857. 

• The property's current owner has voluntarily responded to the heritage designation 

program and desires that their property be designated.    

• Staff has evaluated this historic home as a significant built heritage resource for 

the Town of Milton and should be designated under Part IV of the Ontario Heritage 

Act. (See Appendix '1') 

• This significant heritage resource fulfills more than two of the evaluation criteria 

set out in Part IV of the Ontario Heritage Act (R.S.O. 1990), Ontario Regulation 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

9/06 (See Appendix 2). As such, it is worthy of designation under the provisions of 

the Ontario Heritage Act. 

 

REPORT 
 

Background 

This one-and-a-half-storey, board-and-batten house was built in 1870 for Peter Little and his 

family. This property's historical and architectural significance is deeply rooted in its 

contribution to the history of the Nassagaweya settlement. 

 

Discussion 

In 1819, Reuben Sherwood received the Crown patent for this land. Reuben was the Deputy 
Provincial Land Surveyor who surveyed the lower part of Nassagaweya in 1799. He sold it 
to James Buchanan in the same year. 

Robert Buchanan, the eldest son of James, inherited the property in 1853. After his death, 
his wife, Elizabeth Whitla, sold 100 acres forming the west half of the property to Peter Little. 
In 1870, Peter built the historical portion of the house for his family. Peter Little was a farmer 
and merchant. He opened the first store in Moffat on the west corner of Lot 15, Concession 
II, in 1857. He was a well-educated man, a Presbyterian and a Liberal, but never sought 
office.  He was married to Jane Little.   

The property was passed on to David Little in 1887, who sold it in the same year to George 
Amos. Between 1887 and 1888, part of the land was deed to the Guelph Junction Railway 
Company to accommodate the railroad through the property. George also granted a right to 
search for oil to a group of men consisting of Robert Dawrie, John Davidson, William James 
Armstrong, Herbert McCutcheon, and Ernest Carter. George sold the property to the 
Britannia Securities Corporation Ltd, who then sold it to John Fothergill Mitchell in 1915. 

Several owners held the property after John; they included Charles Ridgewell and William 
Henry Payne (1916), Charles Ridgewell (1918), Isabel Kirkland (1918), Robert Tilley Amos 
(1919), and William Henry and Mary Adeline Black (1936). William (Bill) came to the Moffat 
area in 1922. He established a partnership with T.C. (Tommy) Amos, and they developed a 
prize-winning herd of purebred Shorthorn cattle, which they subsequently exhibited at major 
cattle shows across Canada. In 1926, their bull, Manor Chief 9th, was the Grand Champion 
Shorthorn Bull at the Canadian National Exhibition. Bill retired and sold the farm to James 
David and Nadine Bell in 1964. 
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Discussion 

Other owners after the Bells were Walter C. Jackson (1969), Fred Loeffel Construction 
Limited and Bruno Campitelli (1970), Rolando Di and Magaret Ann Di Benedetto (1977), 
John Charles Tilt and Nancy Lee Buckingham (1979). 

Physically, the historical Regency-style part of the house is clad with board and batten. It 
features a medium-sloped gable roof with extended eaves, plain fascia, and soffits. William 
Black added a wide shed dormer to the rear of the property in the 1950s. Subsequently, a 
west wing was added to the original house and completed in 1991. A shed permit was issued 
in 1992. 

The open-front verandah features plain timber posts and railings. Windows are double-hung 
nine-over-nine at the front elevation and six-over-six at the side elevation. A single-flue brick 
chimney remains intact and is located near the center of the historic house. 

Contextually, this early Regency style house served as the home of Peter Little and other 
pioneers of Moffat, Nassagaweya and reminds us of the settlement history of this area.  

Character-Defining Elements / Heritage Attributes: 

Key attributes that reflect the cultural heritage value of the property include:  

• The original massing of the one-and-a-half-storey board and batten house with 
projecting eaves, plain fascia, soffit and medium gable roof. 

• Single-flue brick chimney 

• Double-hung, six over six windows with plain trims and wood slip sill. 

• The historical home of Peter Little, who was among the first merchants in Moffat 
to open a store at the west side of Lot 15, Concession II, Moffat, in 1857 

• The historic home's context in preserving the settlement history of 
Nassageweya. 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends that the optimal conservation and protection measures for this heritage 
property is the designation of the property. 

 

Financial Impact 

There is no financial impact associated with this report. 
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Respectfully submitted,  
 
Jill Hogan 
Commissioner, Development Services 

For questions, please contact: Anthony Wong, Senior Policy 

Planner 

Phone: Ext. 2565 

 

Attachments 

Appendix ‘1’_Reasons for Designation _ 11275 First Line 

Appendix ‘2’_CHVI evaluation of _11275 First Line 

Appendix ‘3’_Photographic Record Heritage Attributes_11275 First Line 

 

Approved by CAO 
Andrew M. Siltala 
Chief Administrative Officer 

Recognition of Traditional Lands 

The Town of Milton resides on the Treaty Lands and Territory of the Mississaugas of the 

Credit First Nation. We also recognize the traditional territory of the Huron-Wendat and 

Haudenosaunee people. The Town of Milton shares this land and the responsibility for the 

water, food and resources. We stand as allies with the First Nations as stewards of these 

lands. 
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11275 First Line _ Peter Little  House 
 

 

Legal Description  

Concession 2 Part Lot 17, Nassagaweya 

Description of Property 

In 1819, Rueben Sherwood received the Crown patent for this land. Rueben was the 
Deputy Provincial Land Surveyor who surveyed the lower part of Nassagaweya in 1799. 
He sold it to James Buchanan in the same year. This one-and-a-half-story, board-and-
batten house was built in 1870 for Peter Little and his family. This property's historical and 
architectural significance is deeply rooted in its contribution to the history of the 
Nassageweya settlement.  

Statement of Cultural Value and Interest 

Historical Value 

Robert Buchanan, the eldest son of James, inherited the property in 1853. After his death, his wife, 
Elizabeth Whitia, sold 100 acres, the west half of the property, to Peter Little in 1870, who built the 
historical portion of the house for his family. Peter Little was a farmer and merchant. He opened 
the first store in Moffat on the west corner of Lot 15, Concession II, in 1857. He was a well-
educated man, a Presbyterian and a Liberal, and never sought office.  He married Jane Little.   

The property was passed on to David Little in 1887, who sold it in the same year to George Amos. 
Between 1887 and 1888, part of the land was deed to the Guelph Junction Railway Company to 
accommodate the railroad through the property. George also granted a right to search for oil to a 
group of men consisting of Robert Dawrie, John Davidson, William James Armstrong, Herbert 
McCutcheon, and Ernest Carter. George sold the property to the Britannia Securities Corporation 
Ltd, who then sold it to John Fothergill Mitchell in 1915. 

Several owners held the property after John; they included Charles Ridgewell and William Henry 
Payne (1916), Charles Ridgewell (1918), Isabel Kirkland (1918), Robert Tilley Amos (1919), and 



William Henry and Mary Adeline Black (1936). William (Bill) came to the Moffat area in 1922. He 
established a partnership with T.C. (Tommy) Amos, and they developed a prize-winning herd of 
purebred Shorthorn cattle, which they subsequently exhibited at major cattle shows across 
Canada. In 1926, their bull, Manor Chief 9th, was the Grand Champion Shorthorn Bull at the 
Canadian National Exhibition. Bill retired and sold the farm to James David and Nadine Bell in 
1964. 

Other owners after the Bells were Walter C. Jackson (1969), Fred Loeffel Construction Limited and 
Bruno Campitelli (1970), Rolando Di and Magaret Ann Di Benedetto (1977), John Charles Tilt and 
Nancy Lee Buckingham (1979). 

Physical or Design Value 

Physically, the historical Regency-style part of the house is clad with board and batten. It features 
a medium-sloped gable roof with extended eaves, plain fascia, and soffits. William Black added a 
wide shed dormer to the rear of the property in the 1950s. Subsequently, a west wing was added 
to the original house and completed in 1991. A shed permit was issued in 1992. 

The open-front verandah features plain timber posts and railings. Windows are double-hung nine-
over-nine at the front elevation and six-over-six at the side elevation. A single-flue brick chimney 
remains intact and is located near the center of the historic house. 

Contextually, this early Regency style house served as the home of Peter Little and other pioneers 
of Moffat, Nassagaweya and reminds us of the settlement history of this area 

Contextual Value 

Contextually, this early Regency style served as the home of Peter Little and other pioneers of 
Moffat, Nassageweya and reminds us of the settlement history of this area. 

Character Defining Elements/Heritage Attributes 

Key attributes that reflect the cultural heritage value of the property include:  
 

• The original massing of the one-and-a-half-storey board and batten house with 
projecting eaves, plain fascia, soffit and medium gable roof. 

• Single-flue brick chimney 

• Double-hung, six over six windows with plain trims and wood slip sill. 

• The historical home of Peter Little, who was among the first merchants in Moffat to 
open a store at the west side of Lot 15, Concession II, Moffat, in 1857 

• The historic home's context in preserving the settlement history of Nassageweya. 
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Cultural Heritage Value or Interest Evaluation 
 

Ontario Regulation 9/06 of the Ontario Heritage Act establishes the criteria for 
determining Cultural Heritage Value of Heritage Resources. A property must have 
the potential to meet at least two of the criteria to be considered to have heritage 
significance. These criteria fall into three categories: design or physical value, 
historical or associative value and contextual value. The following table considers 
and evaluates the subject property against these criteria. 

Table 6: Evaluation of the Cultural Heritage Value of 11275 First Line 

The property has design value or physical value because it, 

 Criteria Evaluation 

i is a rare, unique, 
representative or early 
example of a style, type, 
expression, material or 
construction method 

Yes, this one-and-a-half-story 
Regency Style house was 
built in 1870 for Peter Little 
and family and is a good 
example of an early pioneer 
home. 

Ii displays a high degree of 
craftsmanship or artistic 
merit 

No, this house does not display a 
high degree of craftsmanship or 
artistic merit 

iii demonstrates a high 
degree of technical or 
scientific 
achievement 

No, the property does not 
demonstrate a high degree of 
technical or scientific 
achievement 

The property has historical value or associative value because it, 

i has direct associations with a 
theme, event, belief, person, 
activity, organization or 
institution that is significant to 
a community 

Yes, Peter was the first 
merchant to open a store in 
Moffat on the west side of Lot 
15 Concession II in 1857. 

ii Yields or has the potential to 
yield, information that 
contributes to an 
understanding of a community 
or culture 

Yes, this house has the potential 
yield information on the 
settlements and cattle breeding 
history in Nassageweya 

iii demonstrates or reflects the 
work or ideas of an architect, 
artist, builder, designer or 
theorist who 
is significant to a community 

No, this house does not 
demonstrate or reflects the work 
or ideas of an architect, artist, 
builder, designer or theorist who 
is significant to a community 

The property has contextual value because it, 

i is important in defining, 
maintaining or supporting 
the character of an area 

Yes, this house is one of the few 

remaining houses reminding us of 
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the settlements history in 

Nassageweya. 

ii is physically, functionally, 
visually or historically linked 
to its surroundings 

No, this house is not physically, 

functionally, visually or historically 

linked to its surroundings 

iii is a landmark No, the property is not a landmark. 

 
 

Based on the above criteria, the subject property has significant cultural heritage 
value based on both design and contextual criteria. These attributes are sufficient 
to warrant Heritage Designation under the Ontario Heritage Act. However, 
designation may not be necessary at this time as the property is current listed on 
the Municipal Heritage Register, which offers it some protection from demolition. 
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Location Map_ 11275 First line



Location Map_ 11275 First line



Contextual 
Heritage 
Attributes
Context of the location of 
the original house as 
depicted in the 1877 
Historical Atlas of Halton, 
Walker and Miles, Toronto

NASSAGAWEYA, 
CONCESSION II ,LOT 17 

WEST PARCEL

Lot 17

Lot 16

Lot 18

Con I Con II



Milton Heritage 
Inventory Record

• This property was a 
Listed heritage resource 
since 2006.

• CON 2 PT LOT 17 

• 113.39AC 



Historical 
Books Record
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Historical 
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Historical 
Books Record



Source: 
https://digital.library.mcgill.ca/countyatlas/showrecord.php?PersonID=6032 

https://digital.library.mcgill.ca/countyatlas/showrecord.php?PersonID=6032






William and Mary Black
Source: Nasagiweya Historical Society_ research by Audrey Allison

• William Black was born in Ballinlough County Roscommon, Eire (Republic of 
Ireland) 1899. He emigrated to Canada in 1920 by means of a program that 
provided passage to any part of the empire for British ex-servicemen. He had been 
a young soldier in the Royal Field Artillery during World War I. He initially settled 
near his sister Bella having emigrated to Toronto earlier. Bill came to the Moffat 
area about 1922. He establish a partnership with T.C (Tommy) Amos and they 
developed a prize-winning herd of purebred Shorthorn cattle and proceeded to 
exhibit at major cattle shows across Canada. 1926 their bull Manor chief 9th was 
Grand Champion Shorthorn Bull at the Canadian National Exhibition.

• Mary Black (nee Buchanan) was born 1904 in Badenoch, nearby Puslinch 
Township. Her family had originated from Insch Invernesshire Scotland in 1833.  
Mary and Bill married in September 1932 and purchased the farm and called it “Old 
Pleasant Valley Farm” around this time. By this time the Amos and Black 
partnership had dissolved and each continued to build his Shorthorn herd. Bill 
Black and Tommy Amos had married sisters Mary and Marjorie Buchanan, re the 
connection.  Throughout the 1930’s and 40’s Bill exhibited his Shorthorns on “show 
circuit” at major exhibitions across Canada and the International Exhibition in 
Chicago. 

• During the 40’s they had welcomed John into the world. However, he failed to 
follow in his parent’s footsteps but was led astray into an academic career. Bill, 
being away for long periods of time with the cattle, much of the day to day running 
of the farm fell to Mary who was responsible for not only the home but much of 
the work of the farm including preparing produce for sale at the Guelph Farmer’s 
market.  The years of the great depression were difficult ones for all farmers in the 
area and the prize money from the cattle was an important source of revenue 
along with basic sales of livestock and sustained participation in the Guelph 
farmers’ market (chickens, eggs, butter, garden produce and handcrafts) through 
1950. 

• During the 40’s tuberculosis hit the Buchanan family, and a niece was sent to live 
with Black’s and the nephew was sent to live with the Amos’ next door until it was 
safe for them to return home

• In 1949 the Black’s were joined by a farm helper, Arijs Dagavietis, a refugee from 
Lativia. He continued to live on the farm even though he worked at the Milton 
Manor seniors home and was able to provide the care and support that enabled 
the Blacks to continue to live on the farm until their deaths.  In the 50’s Bill 
expanded the farm by purchasing land at the east side of the original farm and 150 
acres directly across the road on the east side of Concession 1. 

• From the time that Mary and Bill moved to the farm they played a very active part 
in the community life and were fully engaged in all types of local activities. With 
receiving a television set as a gift from an old friend their living room became a 
community gathering point especially on a Saturday night. 

• William Black and his wife Mary (Buchanan) registered a Grant to James and 
Nadine (Zuest) Bell and family in 1968. In 1964 Bill retired and sold the farm to Jim 
and Nadine Bell and he and Mary built a retirement home on 50 acres located 
across the road at Concession 1 Lot 17. 

• Bill died in 1985 and Mary died in 1994. 
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2024 Pictures

Rear (North)  Elevation
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Physical Attributes
Front Elevation (West)

• The original massing of the one-and-a-half-storey board and batten house with projecting eaves, plain fascia, soffit and medium gable roof
Stucco was applied to the historical portion of the house in the 1940s

1991 Addition HistoricalHistorical



Physical Attributes
Windows at Front Elevation (West)

Double hung six over six windows second floor
Windows at ground floor were replaced



Physical Attributes
Rear Elevation ( West)

The original massing of the one-and-a-half-storey board and batten house with projecting eaves, plain fascia, soffit and medium gable roof
Stucco was applied to the historical portion of the house in the 1940s

1991 Addition Historical



Physical Attributes
Windows at West elevation (Rear)

Double hung six over six windows second floor
Windows at ground floor were replaced



Physical Attributes
Windows at Side Elevation (South)

Double hung six over one windows at ground floor were part of additions in 1940s
Windows at ground floor were replaced



Physical Attributes
• Single-flue brick chimney



Physical Attributes
•    Six over six windows with plain trims _ Interior view



Physical Attributes

View of windows _ Interior



Physical Attributes

View of windows _ Interior



Non Physical Attributes

• Sympathetic addition to match historical design
•      Double-hung, nine over nine windows with plain trims and wood slip sill.

•    Semis arch window at dormer



Non Physical Attributes
•    Double-hung, nine over nine windows with plain trims and wood slip sill._ Interior View



Non Physical Attributes
• Double-hung, six over six windows with plain trims and wood slip sill at Side (North) elevation



Non-Physical Attributes

• Interior Stairs



Non-Physical Attributes

• Interior Details _Doors



Non-Physical Attributes

• Interior Details
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